
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
 
Tuesday, May 27, 2014                                                                            City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                               16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-2. Appoint Voting Delegate(s) for Association of Washington Cities Annual Business 

Meeting (Council) 
C-3. Approve 2015-2017 Community Development Block Grant Program Interlocal 

Cooperation Agreement (Throm) 
C-4. Approve Community Development Block Grant Program Grant Agreement for Jenkins 

Creek Park Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements (Vondran) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  May 8 meeting. 
• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  May 8 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  May 21 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Sean Smith:  May 1 meeting; May 15 meeting canceled. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  April 24 and May 22 meetings. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. To Receive Testimony on Proposed 2015-2020 Transportation Improvement Program 

(Vondran) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Ordinance Amending Code Pertaining to New City Logo and Tagline (Slate) 
3. Accept Covington Community Park Phase II – 60% Design (Feser) 
4. Discuss Policy Options re Sign Code (Hart) 

 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 



Consent Agenda Item C-1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 27, 2014 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #31057-31112, Including ACH Payments in the Amount of 
$135,754.75, Dated May 13, 2014; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002387392-1002387403 and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002387543-1002387543 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits 
in the Amount of $160,360.24, Dated May 9, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1002435652-1002435668 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$165,118.14, Dated May 23, 2014. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #31057-31112, Including ACH 
Payments in the Amount of $135,754.75, Dated May 13, 2014; Paylocity 
Payroll Checks #1002387392-1002387403 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1002387543-1002387543 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $160,360.24, Dated May 9, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1002435652-1002435668 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $165,118.14, Dated May 23, 2014. 
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

1 of 146



2 of 146



3 of 146



4 of 146



5 of 146



6 of 146



7 of 146



8 of 146



9 of 146



10 of 146



11 of 146



12 of 146



13 of 146



14 of 146



15 of 146



16 of 146



17 of 146



  

Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 27, 2014   
 
SUBJECT:   APPOINT VOTING DELEGATES FOR THE 2014 ASSOCIATION OF 

WASHINGTON CITIES ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): None 

 
PREPARED BY: Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The Association of Washington Cities (AWC) will hold its annual business meeting this year on 
June 19 in Spokane.  Each city selects up to three delegates to vote on AWC policy at the annual 
business meeting held during the conference.  Also at the annual business meeting: 
 

• You elect your board of directors – the people who guide your association’s activities.  
• You debate the hot issues that impact cities.  
• Hear about AWC’s legislative work and what happened during the 2014 legislative 

session directly from AWC’s lobbyists. Find out how it impacts your city and what bills 
survived.  

 
Delegate selections need to be sent to AWC by June 11, 2014. Mayor Pro Tem Wagner and City 
Manager Derek Matheson are registered to attend the conference. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Not Applicable 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance  _____ Resolution       X     Motion               Other  
 
 

Councilmember ___________ moves, and Councilmember _________________ 
seconds to appoint Mayor Pro Tem Wagner and Derek Matheson as the 
delegates to represent the City of Covington at the 2014 Association of 
Washington Cities Annual Business Meeting. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

 

18 of 146



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 27, 2014  
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A KING 

COUNTY INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT REGARDING 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG); HOME 
INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM CONSORTIA; AND REGIONAL 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAM (RAHP) CONSORTIUM.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Human Services Commission 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 1.  King County Interlocal Cooperation Agreement  
 2.  Minutes from the May 8, 2014 Human Services Commission Meeting 

 
PREPARED BY:  Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst 
 
EXPLANATION:     
Staff is seeking authorization from Council to continue participation in the King County 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Consortium, the King County HOME 
Investment Partnerships Program Consortium, and the Regional Affordable Housing Program 
(RAHP) Consortium. The current Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for these federal and 
locally-funded programs will expire at the end of 2014. 
 
The Joint Recommendation Committee (JRC) is composed of city and county representatives 
who are advisors to the King County Executive.  Their role is to review and recommend specific 
projects as well as develop program guidelines for projects undertaken with CDBG, HOME and 
RAHP funds.  The JRC will be responsible to ensure that residents of all geographic areas 
benefit fairly from this program.  In addition, each city has the opportunity to appoint a 
representative to the sub-regional advisory group to review proposals and make project 
recommendations to the JRC.  Currently, Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst, 
serves as the Covington representative on the Consortia’s South King County Advisory Board. 
 
Benefits of Continuing Participation in the CDBG Consortium: 

• Low and moderate-income homeowners in Covington can apply for grants or loans from 
the Housing Repair Program. 

• Low and moderate-income residents who are at risk for homelessness, eviction, or 
foreclosure may be eligible for emergency grants/loans to help them remain in their 
homes through the Housing Stability Program. 

• Nonprofit organizations that serve Covington can apply for funds to acquire or construct 
human service facilities or housing that serve low and moderate-income residents. 

• Nonprofit organizations that serve Covington can apply for funds for human service 
programs that serve low and moderate-income residents. 

• The City of Covington can apply for CDBG funds for public infrastructure and park 
projects that serve low and moderate-income neighborhoods. 

19 of 146



• A Covington representative can participate on the inter-jurisdictional Advisory Board that 
recommends specific projects to receive CDBG funds and program guidelines to the JRC. 

 
Benefits of Continuing Participation in the King County HOME Consortium: 

• City of Covington and affordable housing developers serving Covington may apply for 
HOME funds to help meet locally identified affordable housing needs, including rental 
housing and first-time homeownership programs. 

• City of Covington and affordable housing developers serving Covington may apply for 
HOME funds to support the rehabilitation and preservation of affordable housing. 

• Covington representative can participate on the inter-jurisdictional Advisory Board that 
recommends specific projects to receive HOME funds and program guidelines to the 
JRC. 

 
Amendments to the CDBG Consortia Interlocal Agreements 
 
Staff in the Department of Community and Human Services, Housing and Community 
Development Program conducted a series of meetings with the representatives from the 
participating partner cities in the fall of 2013 and early 2014.  Through those meetings, 
amendments and renewals to the CDBG agreements have been negotiated and agreed upon.  
Those changes to the ILA are noted in blue.   
 
ALTERNATIVES:  Not to participate in the Consortia.  Staff does not recommend this 
alternative because if Covington elects not to participate in the Interlocal Agreement, the City 
would need to apply to the State for CDBG funding and Covington residents would not be 
eligible for the housing repair program. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No fiscal impact. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:   ____ Ordinance            Resolution          X     Motion             Other  
 

Council member _______________ moves, Council member 
__________ seconds to authorize the City Manager to enter into an 
Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with the King County 
CDBG/HOME/RAHP Consortia for the three year period of 2015-
2017. 

 
REVIEWED BY: Derek Matheson, City Manager; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager; Rob 

Hendrickson, Finance Director. 

20 of 146



 

Regular CDBG/HOME Interlocal 1 of 12 2015-2017  

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
REGARDING THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between King County (hereinafter the “County”) and 
the City of ________________________________________________, (hereinafter the “City”) 
said parties to this Agreement each being a unit of general local government in the State of 
Washington. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the federal government, through adoption and administration of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974 (the “Act”), as amended, will make available to King 
County Community Development Block Grant funds, hereinafter referred to as “CDBG”, for 
expenditure during the 2015, 2016 and 2017  funding years; and 

WHEREAS, the area encompassed by unincorporated King County and all participating cities, 
has been designated by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
("HUD"), as an urban county for the purpose of receiving CDBG funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Act directs HUD to distribute to each urban county a share of the annual 
appropriation of CDBG funds based on formula, taking into consideration the social and 
economic characteristics of the urban county; and 

WHEREAS, the Act allows participation of units of general government within an urban county 
in undertaking activities that further the goals of the CDBG program within the urban county; 
and 

WHEREAS, the CDBG Regulations require the acceptance of the King County Consortium 
Consolidated Housing and Community Development Plan (“Consolidated Plan”) by participating 
jurisdictions; and 

WHEREAS, King County is responsible to the federal government for all activities undertaken 
with CDBG funds and shall ensure that all CDBG assurances and certifications King County is 
required to submit to HUD with the Annual Action Plan are met; and 

WHEREAS, King County and the participating jurisdictions agree that it is mutually desirable 
and beneficial to enter into a consortium arrangement pursuant to and authorized by the National 
Affordable Housing Act of 1990, as amended, 42 USC 12701 et. seq. and 24 CFR Part 92 for 
purposes of the HOME Investment Partnerships Program, hereinafter referred to as “HOME 
Program”, and to cooperate in undertaking HOME Program activities; and 

WHEREAS, King County shall undertake CDBG/HOME Program-funded activities in 
participating incorporated jurisdictions as specified in the Consolidated Plan by granting funds to 
those jurisdictions and to other qualifying entities to carry out such activities; and 

ATTACHMENT 1

21 of 146



 

Regular CDBG/HOME Interlocal 2 of 12 2015-2017  

 

WHEREAS, King County and the participating jurisdictions are committed to targeting CDBG 
and HOME Program funds to ensure benefit for very low to moderate-income persons as defined 
by HUD; and 

WHEREAS, King County and the participating jurisdictions recognize that needs of very low to 
moderate-income persons may cross jurisdictional boundaries and therefore can be considered 
regional and sub-regional needs as well as local needs; and 

WHEREAS, King County, in conjunction with the participating jurisdictions, must submit an 
Annual Action Plan to HUD, which is a requirement to receive CDBG funds; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Interlocal Cooperation Agreement, entered into pursuant to and 
in accordance with the State Interlocal Cooperation Act, RCW Chap. 39.34, is to form an urban 
county consortium, (“Consortium”), for planning the distribution and administration of CDBG, 
HOME Program, and other federal funds received on behalf of the Consortium from HUD, and 
for execution of activities in accordance with and under authority of the Act: 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING CIRCUMSTANCES 
AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES CONTAINED HEREIN, IT IS 
AGREED THAT: 

I. GENERAL AGREEMENT 

The County and City agree to cooperate to undertake, or assist in undertaking, activities 
which further the development of viable urban communities funded from annual CDBG 
and HOME Program funds from federal fiscal years 2015, 2016 and 2017 appropriations, 
from recaptured funds and from any program income generated from the expenditure of 
such funds. These activities include the provision of decent housing, homeless assistance, 
and a suitable living environment and economic development opportunities, principally 
for persons with very low to moderate incomes.  

II. DEFINITIONS 

A. “JRC” means the inter-jurisdictional Joint Recommendations Committee as 
described in Section V of this Agreement. 

B. “CDBG Consortium Partners” means jurisdictions that are official HUD-
recognized participants in the CDBG Consortium through a signed Interlocal 
Agreement. 

C. “Consolidated Plan” is the King County Consortium Consolidated Housing and 
Community Development Plan, a HUD-required plan that identifies needs and 
contains a strategic plan to guide the investment of HUD CDBG, HOME and ESG 
funds for a multi-year period not to exceed five years. 

22 of 146



 

Regular CDBG/HOME Interlocal 3 of 12 2015-2017  

 

III. GENERAL DISTRIBUTION OF FUNDS 

The distribution of CDBG and HOME Program funds for the King County urban county 
Consortium shall be governed by the provisions below. 

Planning and Administration: 

A. The Administrative and Planning Set-asides for the CDBG and the HOME 
Programs, to be reserved by the County to meet the County’s responsibility to 
meet all HUD requirements for planning and administration, shall be the 
maximum allowable by HUD [currently twenty (20) percent of the CDBG funds 
available from the annual entitlement and twenty (20) percent of program income, 
and ten (10) percent of the HOME Program funds available from the annual 
entitlement and ten (10) percent of program income]. If the current percentages 
for CDBG and/or HOME administration and planning are changed at the federal 
level, the Consortium may allow the percentage retained by the County to change, 
following review and recommendation by the Joint Recommendations Committee 
(“JRC”), as provided in Section V, and approval by the Metropolitan King County 
Council, as provided in Section VI.   

Public/Human Services: 

B. The Human Services Set-aside of CDBG shall be the maximum allowable by 
HUD for human services [currently fifteen (15) percent of the funds available 
from the CDBG annual entitlement and fifteen (15) percent of program income]. 
The Human Services Set-aside, including Housing Stability homeless prevention 
activities and other homeless activities, shall be determined by the CDBG 
Consortium Partners and approved by the JRC in the Consortium’s most current 
Consolidated Housing and Community Development Plan. 

Housing Repair: 

C. The Housing Repair Program Set-aside shall be twenty (20) percent of the funds 
available from the CDBG entitlement and twenty (20) percent of program income 
(this percentage is discretionary and not required or limited by HUD).  The JRC 
may periodically review and recommend increases or decreases to this percentage 
if, in its judgment, there has been a substantial change in the Consortium’s overall 
funding or  need for housing repair that justifies an increase or decrease. 

 Remaining Capital Funding: 

D. The remaining entitlement and program income funds, as well as any recaptured 
or prior year funds, shall be divided into two separate funds for the two sub-
regions of the county: 1) north/east sub-region; and 2) south sub-region.  The 
percentage split between the two funds shall be equal to the percentage of low to 

23 of 146



 

Regular CDBG/HOME Interlocal 4 of 12 2015-2017  

moderate-income population represented by each sub-region.  Each sub-region 
may propose funding priorities and allocate portions of the sub-region’s funds to 
such priorities for separate competitive processes. Such competitive processes 
must be for eligible activities that are consistent with the King County Consortium 
Consolidated Housing and Community Development Plan. A sub-region may also 
elect to allocate additional funds to the Consortium’s Housing Repair Program for 
the benefit of residents of the sub-region. 

1. The north/east sub-region shall include those cities in the north and east 
and those portions of unincorporated King County that lie north of 
Interstate 90.  The cities of Mercer Island, Newcastle, Issaquah, and North 
Bend, which are at or near the Interstate 90 border, along with their 
designated potential annexation areas, also shall be included in the 
north/east sub-region. 

2. The south sub-region shall include those cities south of Interstate 90 and 
those portions of unincorporated King County that lie south of Interstate 
90, except for the cities of Mercer Island, Newcastle, Issaquah, and North 
Bend and their potential annexation areas, which are part of the north/east 
sub-region.  

3. The formula for dividing the funds between the two sub-regions shall be 
based on each sub-region’s share of the Consortium’s low to moderate-
income population. 

CDBG Guidelines to Address Programmatic Details: 

E. The CDBG Consortium Partners may propose King County Consortium 
CDBG/HOME Guidelines, for approval by the JRC, to guide the Consortium 
regarding details of program implementation, including, but not limited to, 
funding guidelines, frequency of application processes, Consortium procedures 
and goals for geographic equity in the distribution of funds over time. 

IV. USE OF FUNDS:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. Funds shall be used to support the goals, objectives and strategies of the King 
County Consortium Consolidated Housing and Community Development Plan. 

B. Funds shall be used in accordance with the CDBG regulations at 24 CFR Part 
570, Home Program regulations at 24 CFR Part 92, and all other applicable 
federal regulations. 

 

 

V. JOINT RECOMMENDATIONS COMMITTEE 

24 of 146



 

Regular CDBG/HOME Interlocal 5 of 12 2015-2017  

An inter-jurisdictional Joint Recommendations Committee (“JRC”) was established 
through the 2009 – 2011 CDBG/HOME Consortium Interlocal Cooperation Agreement 
and through King County Code Chapter 24.13, and is hereby adopted as part of this 
Agreement.   

A. Composition—The JRC for the CDBG/HOME Consortium shall be composed of 
three county representatives and eight cities representatives. 

1. The three county representatives shall be King County Executive staff with 
broad policy responsibilities and/or department directors.  County 
representatives shall be specified in writing and, where possible, shall be 
consistently the same persons from meeting to meeting. 

2. Four of the cities representatives shall be from those cities signing this 
interlocal cooperation agreement, two from each sub-region. 

3. The remaining four cities representatives shall be from cities that qualify 
to receive CDBG entitlement funds directly from HUD and that are not 
signing this agreement, but are signing either Joint Agreements or HOME 
Program-only agreements.  These latter four representatives shall have no 
vote on matters specific to the jurisdictions that are parties to this 
Agreement. 

4. The chairperson and vice-chairperson of the JRC shall be chosen from 
among the members of the JRC by a majority vote of the members for a 
term of one year beginning with the first meeting of the calendar year.  
Attendance of five members of the entire body of eleven members of the 
JRC for the CDBG/HOME Consortium shall constitute a quorum for 
voting matters in which all members of the JRC are eligible to vote. For 
voting items of the Regular CDBG Consortium, in which only seven 
members may vote (those identified in sub-sections 1 and 2 of this 
section), four members shall constitute a quorum, made up of two King 
County representatives and two city representatives. 

B. Appointments—The King County Executive shall appoint the three county 
representatives.  The participating cities shall provide for the appointment of their 
shared representatives in a manner to be determined by those cities through the 
Sound Cities Association or other agreed-upon mechanism for the execution of 
shared appointing authority.  The Sound Cities Association or other agreed 
mechanism will select four jurisdictions of varying size from among those signing 
this Agreement, two from the north/east sub-region and two from the south sub-
region.   The cities representatives shall be elected officials, chief administrative 
officers, or persons who report directly to the chief administrative officer and who 
have broad policy responsibilities; e.g., planning directors, department directors, 
etc.  Members of the JRC shall serve for two years, or at the pleasure of their 
respective appointing authorities. 

25 of 146



 

Regular CDBG/HOME Interlocal 6 of 12 2015-2017  

C. Powers and Duties—The JRC shall be empowered to:  

1. Review and recommend to the King County Executive all policy matters 
concerning the Consortium CDBG and HOME Program, including but not 
limited to the Consolidated Plan and related plans and policies. 

2. Review and recommend to the King County Executive the projects and 
programs to be undertaken with CDBG funds and HOME Program funds, 
including the Administrative Set-aside. 

3. Monitor and ensure that all geographic areas and actively participating 
jurisdictions benefit from CDBG and HOME Program funded activities 
over time, so far as is feasible considering eligible applications submitted 
within the goals, objectives and strategies of the Consolidated Plan: 1) 
there is equity in distribution of funds pursuant to proportion of the 
region’s low to moderate-income population; and, 2) equity is achieved 
over time pursuant to Consortium Guidelines adopted by the JRC to the 
extent feasible. 

D. Advisory Committees to JRC—In fulfilling its duty to review and recommend 
projects and programs to be undertaken with the CDBG and HOME Program 
funds, the JRC shall consider the advice of sub-regional inter-jurisdictional 
advisory committees.  Sub-regional advisory committees, made up of one 
representative from each participating jurisdiction in a sub-region that wishes to 
participate, shall be convened to assist in the review and recommendation of 
projects and programs to be undertaken in that sub-region.  The JRC may also 
solicit recommendations from other inter-jurisdictional housing and community 
development committees. 

VI. RESPONSIBILITIES AND POWERS OF KING COUNTY 

A. Notwithstanding any other provision contained in this Agreement, the County as 
the applicant and grantee for CDBG and HOME Program funds has responsibility 
for and assumes all obligations in the execution of the CDBG and HOME 
Programs, including final responsibility for selecting and executing activities,  and 
submitting to HUD the Consolidated Plan, Annual Action Plans, and related plans 
and reports, including the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice and 
the Fair Housing Action Plan.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be 
construed as an abdication of those responsibilities and obligations. 

B. The Metropolitan King County Council shall have authority and responsibility for 
all policy matters, including the Consolidated Plan, upon review and recom-
mendation by the JRC. 

C. The Metropolitan King County Council shall have authority and responsibility for 
all fund allocation matters, including approval of the annual CDBG and HOME 

26 of 146



 

Regular CDBG/HOME Interlocal 7 of 12 2015-2017  

Program Administrative Set-asides and appropriation of all CDBG and HOME 
Program funds. 

D. The King County Executive, as administrator of the CDBG and HOME Programs, 
shall have authority and responsibility for all administrative requirements for 
which the County is responsible to the federal government. 

E. The King County Executive shall have authority and responsibility for all fund 
control and disbursements. 

F. The King County Executive shall have the authority and responsibility to staff the 
JRC and provide liaison between HUD and the urban county Consortium. County 
Executive staff shall prepare and present to the JRC evaluation reports or 
recommendations concerning specific proposals or policies, and any other 
material deemed necessary by the JRC to help it fulfill its powers and duties in IV. 
C., above. 

G. King County Executive staff shall have the authority and responsibility to 
communicate and consult with participating jurisdictions on CDBG and HOME 
Program policy and program matters in a timely manner. 

H. King County Executive staff shall have the authority and responsibility to convene 
sub-regional advisory committees made up of representatives from participating 
jurisdictions in the sub-region, to advise the JRC on the allocation of the sub-
regional funds. 

I. King County Executive staff shall provide periodic reports on clients served by 
jurisdictions in the Housing Stability and Housing Repair programs and on the 
status of CDBG and HOME Program funded projects and make them available to 
all participating jurisdictions and the JRC. 

J. King County Executive staff shall solicit proposals, administer contracts, and 
provide for technical assistance, both in the development of viable CDBG and 
HOME Program proposals and in complying with CDBG and HOME Program 
contractual requirements. 

K. King County shall have environmental review responsibility for purposes of 
fulfilling requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act, under which 
King County may require the local incorporated jurisdiction or contractor to 
furnish data, information, and assistance for King County's review and assessment 
in determining whether an Environmental Impact Statement is required. 

VII. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTICIPATING CITIES 

A. All participating cities shall cooperate in the development of the Consolidated 
Plan and related plans. 

27 of 146



 

Regular CDBG/HOME Interlocal 8 of 12 2015-2017  

B. All participating cities shall assign a staff person to be the primary contact for the 
County on CDBG/HOME Program issues.  The assigned CDBG/HOME Program 
contact person is responsible for communicating relevant information to others at 
the participating city, including any representative the city may choose to send to 
the sub-regional advisory committee, if that representative is not the 
CDBG/HOME Program contact person. 

C. At its discretion, a participating city may assign a representative to attend 
meetings of the sub-regional advisory committee.  This representative may or may 
not be the City’s CDBG/HOME Program contact person.  It may be the 
CDBG/HOME Program contact person, a different staff member, an elected 
official, or a citizen. 

D. If and when a participating city deems necessary or advisable, it may prepare 
applications for CDBG or HOME Program funds to address the needs of its 
residents, consistent with the Consolidated Plan. 

E. Each participating city shall obtain its council’s authorization for any CDBG or 
HOME Program application submitted. 

F. All participating cities shall carry out CDBG or HOME Program funded projects 
in a manner that is timely and consistent with contractual requirements. 

G. All participating cities owning community facilities or other real property 
acquired or improved in whole or in part with CDBG or HOME Program funds 
shall comply with use restrictions as required by HUD and as required by any 
relevant policies adopted by the JRC. 

1. During the period of the use restriction, the participating cities shall notify 
King County prior to any modification or change in the use of real 
property acquired or improved in whole or in part with CDBG or HOME 
Program funds.  This includes any modification or change in use from that 
planned at the time of the acquisition or improvement, including 
disposition. 

2. During the period of the use restriction, if the property acquired or 
improved with CDBG or HOME Program funds is sold or transferred for a 
use which does not qualify under the applicable regulations, the 
participating city shall reimburse King County in an amount equal to the 
current fair market value (less any portion thereof attributable to 
expenditures of funds other than CDBG or HOME Program funds). 

VIII. RESPONSIBILITIES OF ALL PARTICIPATING JURISDICTIONS 

A. All participating jurisdictions shall be considered to be those jurisdictions that 
have signed this Agreement. 

28 of 146



 

Regular CDBG/HOME Interlocal 9 of 12 2015-2017  

B. All participating jurisdiction shall fulfill to the County's reasonable satisfaction all 
relevant requirements of federal laws and regulations that apply to King County as 
applicant, including assurances and certifications described in Section VIII below. 

C. Each participating jurisdiction or cooperating unit of general local government 
certifies that it has adopted and is enforcing: 

1. A policy that prohibits the use of excessive force by law enforcement 
agencies within its jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in non-
violent civil rights demonstrations; and 

2. A policy that enforces applicable state and local laws against physically 
barring entrance to or exit from a facility or location which is the subject 
of non-violent civil rights demonstrations within jurisdiction. 

D. Pursuant to 24 CFR 570.501(b), all participating units of local governments are 
subject to the same requirements applicable to sub-recipients when they receive 
CDBG funds to implement an activity. The applicable requirements include, but 
are not limited to, a written agreement with the County that complies with 24 CFR 
570.503 and includes provisions pertaining to: statement of work; records and 
reports; program income; uniform administrative items; other program require-
ments; conditions for religious organizations; suspension and termination; and 
reversion of assets. 

E. All participating units of local government understand that they may not apply for 
grants under the federal Small Cities or State CDBG Programs that receive 
separate entitlements from HUD during the period of participation in this 
Agreement. 

F. All units of local government participating in the CDBG urban county consortium 
through this interlocal cooperation agreement understand that they are also part of 
the urban county for the HOME Program and that they may not participate in a 
HOME Program consortium except through the urban county, regardless of 
whether the urban county receives a HOME formula allocation. 

G. All participating units of local government hereby agree to affirmatively further 
fair housing and to ensure that no CDBG or HOME Program funds shall be 
expended for activities that do not affirmatively further fair housing within its 
jurisdiction or that impede the County's actions to comply with its fair housing 
certification. For purposes of this section, "affirmatively furthering fair housing" 
includes participation in the process of developing an Analysis of Impediments to 
Fair Housing Choice and a Fair Housing Action Plan.   While King County has 
the primary responsibility for the development of these reports to HUD pursuant 
to Section V. A. of this Agreement, upon request, the City shall provide assistance 
to the County in preparing such reports. 

29 of 146



 

Regular CDBG/HOME Interlocal 10 of 12 2015-2017  

H. Participating jurisdictions undertaking activities and/or projects with CDBG funds 
distributed under this Agreement shall retain full civil and criminal liability as 
though these funds were locally generated. 

I. Participating jurisdictions retain responsibility in fulfilling the requirements of the 
State Environmental Policy Act under which King County has review 
responsibility only. 

IX. GENERAL TERMS 

A. This Agreement shall extend through the 2015, 2016 and 2017 program years, 
and shall remain in effect until the CDBG funds, Home Program funds and 
program income received with respect to activities carried out during the three-
year qualification period are expended and the funded activities completed.  This 
Agreement shall be automatically renewed for participation in successive three-
year qualification periods, unless the County or the City provides written notice 
that it wishes to amend this Agreement or elects not to participate in the new 
qualification period by the date set forth by the United States Department of 
Housing and Urban Development in subsequent Urban County Qualification 
Notices.  King County, as the official applicant, shall have the authority and 
responsibility to ensure that any property acquired or assisted with CDBG funds 
or HOME Program funds is disposed of or used in accordance with federal 
regulations. 

B. Pursuant to 24 CFR Part 570.307(d)(2), during the period of qualification no 
included unit of general local government may terminate or withdraw from the 
cooperation agreement while it remains in effect. 

C. It is understood that by signing this Agreement, the City shall agree to comply 
with the policies, goals, objectives and strategies of the King County Consortium 
Consolidated Housing and Community Development Plan. 

D. Parties to this Agreement must take all required actions necessary to assure 
compliance with King County's certification required by Section 104(b) of Title I 
of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, including 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (Title III of the Civil Rights Act), the 
Fair Housing Act as amended, Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990, and other applicable laws. 

E. This Agreement shall be executed in three counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, by the chief executive officers of the County and the City, 
pursuant to the authority granted them by their respective governing bodies.  One 
of the signed Agreements shall be filed by the County with the Region X office of 
HUD, one shall be filed with the City and one shall be filed with the County.  
Prior to its taking effect, the fully executed Agreement shall be filed with the 

30 of 146



 

Regular CDBG/HOME Interlocal 11 of 12 2015-2017  

County Auditor, or, alternatively, listed by subject on a public agency’s web site 
or other electronically retrievable public source. 

F. It is recognized that amendment to the provisions of this Agreement may be 
appropriate, and such amendment shall take place when the parties to this 
Agreement have executed a written amendment to this Agreement.  The City and 
the County also agree to adopt any amendments to the Agreement incorporating 
changes necessary to meet the requirements for cooperation agreements set forth 
in an Urban County Qualification Notice applicable for a subsequent three-year 
qualification period, and to submit such amendment to the United States 
Department of Housing and Urban Development.  Failure to adopt such required 
amendment shall void the automatic renewal of the Agreement for the subsequent 
qualification period. 

 
G. This Agreement is made and entered into for the sole protection and benefit of the 

parties hereto and their successors and assigns.  No other person shall have any 
right of action based on any provision of this Agreement. 

 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
 
 

 CITY OF 
________________________________ 
 

for King County Executive 
 
Adrienne Quinn 

 By:  Signature 
 

Printed Name 
 
Director, Department of Community and 
Human Services 

 Printed Name 
 

Title 
 
 

 Title 

Date  Date 
   
   
Approved as to Form: 
OFFICE OF THE KING COUNTY 
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY 
 
 
 

 Approved as to Form: 
CITY OF ______________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 

   
 
_________________________ 
City Attorney 

31 of 146



 

Regular CDBG/HOME Interlocal 12 of 12 2015-2017  

 
 
ATTEST: 
CITY OF ______________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 

 
 

 

32 of 146



       
 
             HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 

MINUTES  
May 8, 2014- 6:30 p.m.                                                                                            

                              
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair McGregor-Hollums called the May 8, 2014 regular meeting of the Human 
Services Commission to order at 6:32 p.m.    
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Joyce Bowling, Jared McMeen, McGregor-Hollums, and Adam Wheeler  
 
MEMBERS ABSENT 
Commissioners Leslie Hamada, Brian Lord, and Lesley Schlesinger 
CM Brian Lord was excused 
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT  
Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst  
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
CM BOWLING MOVED AND CM WHEELR SECONDED TO APPROVE THE 
AGENDA TO INCLUDE THE MINUTES FROM APRIL 10, 2014 AS WRITTEN.  
VOTE: 4-0.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no comments public comments. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
Item 1.  Review Site Visit to Pediatric Interim Care Center on April 10, 2014 
Director Elaine Purchase provided the commission with a full tour of the facility which 
included viewing the babies in each nursery.  Commissioners agreed that the babies get 
such good care and the facility is state-of-the-art.  CM McMeen was pleased with how 
much contact the nurses have with the newborns which is critical to their development. 
CM McGregor noted that evidence shows there is little to no long-term affects to babies 
born to drug addicted mothers with the exception of alcohol which does cause alcohol 
fetal syndrome.  She added that the cost to house a Covington infant at PICC, even if 
they only served one every few years, would still be more than the small amount of 
grant funding we give them.    
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
Item 2.  Review 1st Quarter Agency Reports 
Chair McGregor gave an overview of the quarterly report process to the new 
commissioners.  Most agencies reached their quarter goal.  The following programs had 
questions or were in need of clarification which Victoria will follow-up on: 
  

ATTACHMENT 2

33 of 146



Human Services Commission                                                                       
Minutes of May 8, 2014 
 

 2  

 Auburn Youth Resources – MC McMeen noted that their case management 
numbers did not align with the number of residents served.   
 
 Catholic Community Services – Emergency Assistance – ask them to expand on 
the outreach techniques they are using to expand the program in Covington. 
 
 SK Council of Human Services Capacity Building Project – There is a new 
program director and he is interested in looking for opportunities to expand in 
Covington with new small agencies that the commission may know about.  This item 
will be put on the June Agenda to discuss. 
 
Item 3.  Recommendation to Council to Participate in the Interlocal Cooperative 
Agreement for CDBG – Action Item 
Victoria explained about the Community Development Block Grant and the grant 
opportunities awarded to Covington as a participant in the Interlocal Cooperative 
Agreement.  One CDBG grant was awarded last year to replace the bridge at Jenkins 
Creek Park entrance and repair the trail throughout the park to be ADA compliant.  
Victoria has received CDBG grant funding to coordinate a Minor Home Repair 
Program for the past four years. 
 
CM McMeen moved and CM Wheeler seconded to recommend to Council to 
consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a King County Interlocal 
Cooperation Agreement regarding Community Development Block Grant 
consortium.  VOTE:  4:0.  Motion Carried. 
 
This item will be moved forward to City Council at the May 27, 2014 meeting. 
 
Item 4.  Update on Funding Application Process 
Victoria provided a list of applicants who applied for Covington funding.  There were 
33 applications which included nine new programs to consider.  CM McMeen asked if 
Vine Maple Place submitted an application.  Victoria had been working with their grant 
writer and was surprised when they did not submit an application.  She will check 
further to make sure she didn’t miss it. 
 
COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION OF COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 
CM Bowling moved and CM McMeen seconded to adjourn the May 8, 2014 
meeting at 7:47 p.m.  VOTE  4:0.  Motion Carried. 
   
Submitted by:                

 
 
 
 

Victoria Throm       
Personnel & Human Services Analyst 

34 of 146



Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 27, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A GRANT AGREEMENT 

WITH KING COUNTY HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FOR 
THE JENKINS CREEK PARK PEDESTRIAN ADA PATH IMPROVEMENTS. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, PE, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. King County CDBG Contract 
 
PREPARED BY:  Dan Wesley, Construction Inspector 
 
EXPLANATION: 
As part of the 2014 King County Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, the 
City of Covington was allocated federal funding in the amount of $418,000 for pedestrian and 
ADA path improvements within Jenkins Creek Park.  The project will restore and enhance the 
existing trail system within Jenkins Creek Park, re-open the pedestrian connection to Jenkins 
Creek Elementary School, the Home Depot commercial area and the downtown area.  
 
In the spring of 2013 the city submitted an application for the 2014 Community Development 
Block Grant non-housing capital competitive funding round.  In the fall of 2013 the city was 
notified that this project was selected to receive the funding for the project. 
 
We are now ready to complete the necessary forms (Attachment 1) from CDBG in order to 
obligate the funds and begin the design process.  The project includes construction of a new 
bridge, constructed to allow maintenance vehicles access to the park at the west entrance of the 
park in the area of the previously washed out bridge, widening and paving of approximately 
1,225 feet of existing path and replacing an existing, deteriorating pedestrian timber bridge, all of 
which will meet current multi-use, accessibility standards.   
 
Although the Local Agency Agreement only obligates, at this time, the $78,000 for design, we 
are requesting that the council grants the city manager the authority to obligate the entire 
$418,000.  This will prevent another agenda item in the near future to obligate the construction 
funds since the design process should be relatively short.  We would still return to the council for 
authorization to award the construction project.  We are anticipating the construction to take 
place in the spring or summer of next year.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The grant fully funds the project and does not require a local match. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance               Resolution       X    Motion             Other  
 

Council member ______________ moves, council member ______________ 
seconds, to authorize the city manager to execute a grant agreement with 
King County Housing and Community Development for the Jenkins Creek 
Park Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

35 of 146



ATTACHMENT 1

36 of 146



37 of 146



38 of 146



39 of 146



40 of 146



41 of 146



42 of 146



43 of 146



44 of 146



45 of 146



46 of 146



47 of 146



48 of 146



49 of 146



50 of 146



51 of 146



52 of 146



53 of 146



54 of 146



55 of 146



56 of 146



57 of 146



58 of 146



59 of 146



60 of 146



61 of 146



62 of 146



63 of 146



64 of 146



65 of 146



66 of 146



67 of 146



68 of 146



69 of 146



70 of 146



71 of 146



72 of 146



73 of 146



74 of 146



75 of 146



76 of 146



77 of 146



78 of 146



79 of 146



80 of 146



81 of 146



82 of 146



83 of 146



84 of 146



85 of 146



86 of 146



87 of 146



88 of 146



89 of 146



90 of 146



91 of 146



92 of 146



93 of 146



94 of 146



95 of 146



96 of 146



97 of 146



98 of 146



99 of 146



100 of 146



101 of 146



102 of 146



103 of 146



104 of 146



105 of 146



106 of 146



107 of 146



108 of 146



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 27, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: RECEIVE PUBLIC TESTIMONY ON THE PROPOSED SIX-YEAR 2015 – 2020 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP). 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. 2015 – 2020 TIP Summary Spreadsheet 
2. 2015 – 2020 TIP Map 
3. 2015 – 2020 TIP Project Descriptions 
 
PREPARED BY:  Robert Lindskov, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:   
The city is required by RCW 35.77.010 to annually prepare and adopt a comprehensive 
transportation program for the ensuing six calendar years and to forward a copy of that Six-Year 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) to the Washington State Secretary of Transportation 
by July 31st.  The TIP represents the first six years of the 20-year transportation (street) capital 
improvement program.  The projects contained in the proposed City of Covington Six-Year TIP 
2015 – 2020 are consistent with the transportation projects identified in the Capital Facilities 
Element of the city’s Comprehensive Plan adopted December 16, 2003.  
 
On May 13, 2014, a draft 2015 – 2020 TIP was presented to the council.  After discussion, the 
council concurred to direct staff to add the 204th Avenue SE widening project, the 164th Avenue 
SE pedestrian safety and mobility project, and the Town Center 1 and 2 projects to the TIP.  Staff 
has updated the TIP to reflect those changes (see attachments for details).   
 
As a segment of the public involvement process, the city council must hold a public hearing to 
receive testimony on the TIP.  This hearing has been properly noticed in the Covington Reporter 
on May 9, 2014. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  Direct staff to modify the draft 2015 – 2020 Six-Year TIP. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The fiscal impact of each proposed project is indicated in the draft Six-Year TIP 2015 – 2020.  
Additional revenues are needed to fund these projects.  Possible revenue sources are grants, 
appropriations and traffic impact fees. The specific revenue source(s) to fund the portion of each 
project cost that the city is responsible for is determined each year during the budget process.   
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution            Motion      X   Other 
 

HOLD PUBLIC HEARING.  PROVIDE INPUT TO STAFF. 
 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

109 of 146



A
D

O
P

T
E

D
 _

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

 b
y 

R
E

S
O

LU
T

IO
N

 _
__

__
   

1
2

3
4

5
6

T
ot

al
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
20

20
P

rio
rit

y
C

ity
 C

IP
 #

, P
ro

je
ct

 N
am

e,
  T

er
m

in
i, 

 M
aj

or
 C

la
ss

 o
f W

or
k

P
ha

se
F

un
de

d
F

un
ds

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

1
11

27
,

D
gn

X
X

0
 

 
 

 
 

 
S

E
 2

72
nd

 S
tr

ee
t (

S
R

 5
16

) 
R

-o
-W

X
X

0
 

 
 

 
 

 
Je

nk
in

s 
C

re
ek

 to
 1

85
th

 P
la

ce
 S

E
 

C
on

st
13

,1
58

13
,1

58
 

 
 

 
 

W
id

en
 to

 5
 la

ne
s 

&
 r

ec
on

st
ru

ct
, S

id
ew

al
ks

, N
ew

 s
tr

ea
m

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
13

,1
58

13
,1

58
0

0
0

0
0

2
10

14
,

D
gn

X
X

78
Je

nk
in

s 
C

re
ek

 P
ar

k
R

-o
-W

N
/A

0
S

E
 2

67
th

 P
la

ce
 to

 S
E

 2
68

th
 S

tr
ee

t
C

on
st

X
X

46
6

46
6

N
on

 M
ot

or
iz

ed
 M

ul
ti-

us
e 

tr
ai

l a
nd

 b
rid

ge
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

54
4

46
6

0
3

12
01

,
D

gn
3,

59
0

20
4t

h 
A

ve
nu

e 
S

E
R

-o
-W

6 8
6

S
ch

ed
ul

e 
dr

iv
en

 b
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

S
E

 2
72

nd
 S

tr
ee

t t
o 

S
E

 2
56

th
 S

tr
ee

t
C

on
st

22
,8

61
(M

ay
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 in

 p
or

tio
ns

)
W

id
en

 to
 fu

ll 
C

ity
 S

ta
nd

ar
d,

 S
id

ew
al

ks
, B

ic
yc

le
 L

an
es

, P
la

nt
ed

 M
ed

ia
ns

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

27
,1

36
4

10
86

,
D

gn
90

90
 

 
 

 
 

16
4t

h 
A

ve
nu

e 
S

E
R

-o
-W

91
 

91
 

 
 

 
S

E
 2

64
th

 S
tr

ee
t t

o 
S

E
 2

69
th

 S
tr

ee
t

C
on

st
82

3
 

82
3

 
 

 
 

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, 5
' a

sp
ha

lt 
w

al
kw

ay
, d

ra
in

ag
e 

sw
al

e
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
1,

00
4

90
91

4
0

0
0

0
5

11
28

,
D

gn
1,

34
3

 
1,

34
3

 
 

 
 

S
E

 2
72

nd
 S

tr
ee

t (
S

R
 5

16
)

R
-o

-W
77

0
 

 
77

0
 

 
 

18
5t

h 
P

la
ce

 S
E

 to
 1

92
nd

 A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

C
on

st
14

,2
86

 
 

 
14

,2
86

 
 

W
id

en
 to

 5
 la

ne
s 

&
 r

ec
on

st
ru

ct
, S

id
ew

al
ks

, N
ew

 s
ig

na
l.

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

16
,3

99
0

1,
34

3
77

0
14

,2
86

0
0

6
10

63
,

D
gn

97
9

 
 

97
9

 
 

 
S

E
 2

72
nd

 S
tr

ee
t (

S
ta

te
 R

ou
te

 5
16

)
R

-o
-W

1,
39

8
 

 
 

1,
39

8
 

 
16

0t
h 

A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

 to
 1

64
th

 A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

C
on

st
10

,3
40

 
 

 
 

10
,3

40
 

S
ig

na
l m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, a

dd
 tu

rn
 la

ne
s,

 s
tr

ea
m

 c
ro

ss
in

g.
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
12

,7
17

0
0

97
9

1,
39

8
10

,3
40

0
7

P
or

tio
ns

 o
f 1

05
6 

an
d 

11
49

D
gn

49
8

 
 

 
 

49
8

 
S

E
 2

56
th

 S
tr

ee
t a

nd
 1

80
th

 A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

R
-o

-W
24

2
 

 
 

 
 

24
2

S
af

et
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

,S
id

ew
al

ks
 

C
on

st
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
ig

na
l m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, a

dd
 r

ig
ht

 tu
rn

 la
ne

.
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
74

0
0

0
0

0
49

8
24

2
8

T
ow

n 
C

en
te

r 
1

D
gn

1,
55

0
S

E
 2

76
th

 S
tr

ee
t

R
-o

-W
6,

98
1

S
ch

ed
ul

e 
dr

iv
en

 b
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

16
8t

h 
P

la
ce

 S
E

 to
 S

E
 W

ax
 R

oa
d

C
on

st
4,

65
0

(M
ay

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 in
 p

or
tio

ns
)

N
ew

 R
ou

te
, N

ew
 A

lig
nm

en
t, 

T
yp

e 
II 

R
oa

dw
ay

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

13
,1

80
9

T
ow

n 
C

en
te

r 
2

D
gn

57
9

17
2n

d 
A

ve
nu

e 
S

E
 

R
-o

-W
98

9
S

ch
ed

ul
e 

dr
iv

en
 b

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
S

E
 2

75
th

 S
tr

ee
t t

o 
S

E
 2

76
th

 S
tr

ee
t

C
on

st
1,

73
7

(M
ay

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 in
 p

or
tio

ns
)

N
ew

 R
ou

te
, N

ew
 A

lig
nm

en
t, 

T
yp

e 
I R

oa
dw

ay
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
3,

30
4

10
11

24
,

D
gn

1,
13

1
 

 
 

 
 

1,
13

1
18

5t
h 

P
la

ce
 S

E
 E

xt
en

si
on

R
-o

-W
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
ax

 R
oa

d/
18

0t
h 

A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

 R
ou

nd
ab

ou
t t

o 
S

E
 2

72
nd

 S
tr

ee
t

C
on

st
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
ew

 R
ou

te
, N

ew
 A

lig
nm

en
t, 

A
cc

es
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t.

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

1,
13

1
0

0
0

0
0

1,
13

1

3.
0%

A
nn

ua
l C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
os

t I
nc

re
as

e
T

O
T

A
L

89
,3

13
13

,7
14

2,
25

7
1,

74
9

15
,6

84
10

,8
38

1,
37

3

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
in

 T
ho

us
an

ds

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

O
V

IN
G

T
O

N
20

15
 t

o
 2

02
0 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

ATTACHMENT 1

110 of 146



A
D

O
P

T
E

D
 _

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

 b
y 

R
E

S
O

LU
T

IO
N

 _
__

__
   

1
2

3
4

5
6

T
ot

al
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
20

20
P

rio
rit

y
C

ity
 C

IP
 #

, P
ro

je
ct

 N
am

e,
  T

er
m

in
i, 

 M
aj

or
 C

la
ss

 o
f W

or
k

P
ha

se
F

un
de

d
F

un
ds

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

N
/A

10
28

,
D

gn
X

X
70

S
E

 2
40

th
 S

tr
ee

t, 
19

6t
h 

A
ve

 S
E

  a
nd

 S
E

 W
ax

 R
oa

d
R

-o
-W

N
/A

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 2

01
4

S
E

 2
40

th
 (

18
0t

h 
- 

19
6t

h)
, 1

96
th

 (
24

0t
h 

- 
W

ax
) 

&
 S

E
 W

ax
 (

19
3r

d 
- 

19
6t

h)
 

C
on

st
X

X
40

3
O

ve
rla

y 
ex

is
tin

g 
ro

ad
w

ay
s

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

47
3

N
/A

10
29

,
D

gn
X

X
31

C
ity

w
id

e 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
S

af
et

y 
P

ro
je

ct
R

-o
-W

N
/A

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 2

01
4

10
 in

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ci
ty

 (
se

e 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

fo
r 

de
ta

ils
)

C
on

st
X

X
21

9
V

ar
io

us
 s

ig
ni

ng
, s

tr
ip

in
g 

an
d 

ch
an

ne
liz

at
io

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

25
0

N
/A

10
57

,
D

gn
X

X
40

 
 

 
 

 
 

15
6t

h 
A

ve
nu

e 
S

E
R

-o
-W

0
 

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 2

01
4

 
 

V
ic

in
ity

 S
E

 2
72

nd
 S

tr
ee

t t
o 

V
ic

in
ity

 S
E

 2
61

st
 P

la
ce

C
on

st
X

X
34

0
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

av
em

en
t R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

38
0

N
/A

P
la

nn
in

g 
Le

ve
l S

tu
dy

P
l a

nn
in

g
50

T
ow

n 
C

en
te

r 
E

co
no

m
ic

 Im
pa

ct
 &

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 C

os
t S

tu
dy

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 2

01
4

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

50

3.
0%

A
nn

ua
l C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
os

t I
nc

re
as

e
T

O
T

A
L

1,
15

3

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
in

 T
ho

us
an

ds

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

O
V

IN
G

T
O

N
20

1 5
 t

o
 2

02
0 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

111 of 146



SR
 18

SE
 27

2N
D 

ST

SE
 25

6T
H 

ST

RAMP

180TH AVE SE

164TH AVE SE

SE WAX RD

SE
 24

0T
H 

ST

156TH AVE SE

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

204TH AVE SE

SE
 25

1S
T S

T

168TH PL SE

156TH PL SE

COVINGTON WAY SE

170TH PL SE

160TH AVE SE

173RD AVE SE

SE
 27

9T
H P

L

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

SE
 26

7T
H S

T

197TH PL SE

172ND AVE SE
SE

 26
2N

D 
PL

199TH PL SE

TIMBERLANE WAY SE191ST PL SE

194TH AVE SE

200TH AVE SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

PL

SE
 24

4T
H 

ST

161ST PL SE

193RD PL SE

SE
 27

1S
T S

T

SE
 26

5T
H S

T

SE
 26

6T
H 

PL

SE
 24

4T
H 

PL

SE
 27

7T
H 

PL

FR
ONT

AG
E R

D

210TH AVE SE

172ND PL SE
SE

 26
2N

D 
ST

170TH AVE SE

152ND AVE SE

SE
 24

6T
H 

ST

169TH PL SE

196TH AVE SE

177TH PL SE

166TH PL SE

SE
 25

9T
H S

T

SE
 25

4T
H 

PL

SE
 26

0T
H S

T

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

185TH PL SE186TH PL SE

151ST PL SE

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST

TIM
BERLANE DR SE

184TH AVE SE

167TH PL SE

161ST AVE SE

183RD AVE SE

175TH WAY SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

ST

SE
 24

7T
H 

ST

199TH AVE SE

179TH PL SE

176TH AVE SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

170
TH

 W
AY

 SE

176TH PL SE SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

175TH AVE SE

159TH AVE SE

153RD AVE SE

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL

183RD PL SE

171ST PL SE

195TH PL SE

192ND PL SE

SE
 24

9T
H 

PL

171ST AVE SE

SE
 25

3R
D 

PL

188TH AVE SE

SE
 26

6T
H S

T

SE
 26

3R
D 

PL

192ND AVE SE

203RD AVE SE

SE
 26

8T
H 

PL

195TH CT SE

178TH PL SE

SE
 27

1S
T P

L

150TH PL SE

211TH AVE SE

165TH PL SE

SE
 25

6T
H 

PL

189
TH AVE SE

SE 258TH ST

159
TH PL SE

186TH AVE SE

208TH AVE SE

185TH AVE SE

162ND AVE SE

184TH PL SE

174TH PL SE

SE
 26

3R
D 

ST

168TH AVE SE

212TH AVE SE

196TH PL SE

SE
 25

4T
H 

ST

SE
 24

5T
H 

PL

SE
 24

6T
H 

PL

SE
 24

7T
H 

PL

SE
 TI

MBE
RL

AN
E B

LV
D

SE
 24

1S
T P

L

SE
 26

1S
T C

T
SE

 26
1S

T P
L

190TH PL SE

SE
 25

2N
D 

PL

206TH AVE SE

155TH AVE SE

SE
 26

9T
H 

PL

169TH AVE SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

PL

SE
 26

3R
D 

CT

SE
 28

0T
H P

L

SE
 25

5T
H 

PL

SE
 25

1S
T P

L

183RD CT SE

SE 258TH PL

186
TH CT SE

SE
 24

2N
D 

ST

SE
 24

1S
T S

T

163RD PL SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

196TH AVE SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

160TH AVE SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST
SE

 26
8T

H S
T

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

RAMP

SE
 26

5T
H S

T

168TH AVE SE

188TH AVE SE

RA
MP

SE
 25

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

200TH AVE SE

SE
 26

8T
H S

T

SE
 W

AX R
D

165TH PL SE

168TH PL SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST
SE

 26
7T

H 
PL

SE
 25

5T
H 

PL

172ND AVE SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

SE
 25

9T
H 

ST

SE
 26

3R
D 

PL

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

3R
D S

T

SR
 18

SE
 26

6T
H S

T

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

180TH AVE SE
SE

 27
0T

H S
T

168TH PL SE

192ND AVE SE

SE
 25

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

4T
H S

T
SE

 26
3R

D P
L

168TH PL SE

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

191ST PL SE

167TH PL SE

SE
 26

9T
H S

T

SE
 26

7T
H S

T

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

176TH AVE SE

203RD AVE SE

Pipe Lake

11
24

11
28

11
27

10
63

11
49

10
56

10
57

10
28

10
14

10
29

10
29

10
29

10
29

Th
is 

ma
p i

s i
nt

en
de

d f
or

 pl
an

nin
g p

ur
po

se
s o

nly
. 

Inf
or

ma
tio

n w
as

 co
mp

ile
d f

ro
m 

th
e m

os
t a

cc
ur

ate
 

so
ur

ce
s g

en
er

all
y a

va
ila

ble
.

Dr
aft

 6-
Ye

ar 
Tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

jec
ts 

20
15

-20
20

 

Ci
ty 

of 
Co

vin
gto

n

Cr
ea

ted
 By

: S
ha

wn
 Bu

ck
 05

/15
/20

14

.

10
29

10
29

10
29

10
29

10
29

10
29

O:
\C

ov
ing

ton
_G

IS_
Lib

rar
y\P

RO
JE

CT
_F

OL
DE

R\
Pu

bli
c_

Wo
rks

\St
ree

ts\
TIP

_M
ap

s\6
_Y

ea
r_T

IP\
6_

Ye
ar_

TIP
.m

xd

12
01

TC
1TC

2

10
86

ATTACHMENT 2

112 of 146



City of Covington 
2015-2020 6 Year TIP 
Project Descriptions 

 
Capital Improvement Project Priorities 
 
 
 
1. CIP 1127 SE 272nd Street between Jenkins Creek and 185th Place SE  

 
This project is to widen and reconstruct a portion of 
SE 272nd Street between Jenkins Creek and 185th 
Place SE.  This project will include the crossing of 
Jenkins Creek with a new structure for the stream, 
widening the street from 2-lanes to 5-lanes 
including curb and gutter, 8’ sidewalks, access 
control features, landscaping and provisions for u-
turns.   

 
 
 

 
2. CIP 1014 Jenkins Creek Park between SE 267th Place and SE 268th Street 

 
This is a non-motorized transportation project that 
will construct a multiuse trail between SE 267th 
Place and SE 268th Street through Jenkins Creek 
Park.  This project will replace the pedestrian bridge 
that was washed out from a storm and once again 
connect neighborhoods to Jenkins Creek Elementary 
as well as provide ADA and bike access to and from 
the downtown core.     
 
 
 
 
 

3. CIP 1201 204th Avenue SE between SE 272nd Street SE and SE 259th Street 
 
The new roadway connection will provide overall 
benefits to the citywide street system by providing 
more options for vehicles traveling between SE 
272nd Street and SR 18.  This collector arterial will 
be widened to two 12-foot lanes, one 14-foot turn 
lane/median, and two 5-foot wide bike lanes.  Each 
side of the roadway will also include a curb, a 
gutter, a 5-foot landscape buffer, and a 5-foot 
sidewalk. 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 3

113 of 146



City of Covington 
2015-2020 6 Year TIP 
Project Descriptions 

 
4. CIP 1086 164th Avenue SE between SE 264th Street and vicinity SE 269th Street 

 
This project will install a 5’ separated walkway on 
the east side of 164th Avenue SE between SE 264th 
Street and just south of SE 269th Street.  This project 
will also install a drainage swale with underdrainage 
to convey and treat surface water. Once completed, 
this will provide a continuous separated 
walkway/sidewalk from Kentwood High School to 
the Covington Library.   
 

 
 
 
 
5. CIP 1128 SE 272nd Street between 185th Place SE and 192nd Avenue SE 

 
This project is to widen and reconstruct a portion of 
SE 272nd Street between 185th Place SE and 192nd 
Avenue SE.  This project will widen the street from 
2-lanes to 5-lanes including curb and gutter, 8’ 
sidewalks, access control features, landscaping and 
provisions for u-turns.   

 
 
 
 
 
6. CIP 1063 SE 272nd Street between 160th Avenue SE and 164th Avenue SE 

 
This project provides for design and future 
construction of additional turn lanes, channelization, 
and signal modifications.  Widening SE 272nd Street 
will require modifications to the existing stream 
crossing at the intersection.  Project length is 800 
feet.  Construct street section consistent with the 
existing SR 516 section including illumination, 
landscaping, 10’ wide sidewalks with street trees in 
planting wells. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

114 of 146



City of Covington 
2015-2020 6 Year TIP 
Project Descriptions 

 
 
 
7. CIP 1056 SE 256th Street between 172nd Avenue SE and 180th Avenue SE 

CIP 1149 180th Avenue SE between SE 256th Street and SE Wax Road (N)  
 
Portions of these two larger CIP projects (see map) 
are being combined to provide improvements 
adjacent to the new fire station at SE 256th Street 
and 180th Avenue SE.  The improvements will 
include widening the north side of SE 256th Street 
from 180th Avenue SE to 176th Avenue SE to match 
the section at 168th Avenue SE.  The frontage along 
180th Avenue SE will be widened from the 
intersection to Crestwood Elementary School. 
 

 
 
8. Town Center 1     SE 276th Street between 168th Place SE and SE Wax Road 
 

This is a new route; new alignment roadway that 
will support the Town Center vision and meet the 
Town Center Design Guidelines.  The schedule of 
these projects will be primarily driven by 
development and may be constructed in portions.     
 
 

 
 
 
 
9. Town Center 2   171st Avenue SE (Main Street) between SE 275th Street and SE 276th Street 

 
This is a new route; new alignment roadway that 
will support the Town Center vision and meet the 
Town Center Design Guidelines.  The schedule of 
these projects will be primarily driven by 
development and may be constructed in portions.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

115 of 146



City of Covington 
2015-2020 6 Year TIP 
Project Descriptions 

 
 
10. CIP 1124 185th Place SE Extension - Wax Road/180th Ave SE to SE 272nd Street 

 
This project connects SE Wax Road/180th Avenue 
SE to SE 272nd Street via a new route and alignment 
designated as 185th Place SE.  The street section 
will consist of a 3-lane urban arterial standard with 
curb, gutter and 8’ sidewalks, landscaping strips, 
illumination and stormwater infrastructure.  The 
project will also include crossing Jenkins Creek.  
The actual route and alignment will be determined 
during design.    

 
 

 
COMPLETED 2014 
 
 

1. CIP 1028   SE 240th Street, 196th Ave SE and SE Wax Road Overlay   
 
This project will overlay SE 240th Street from 180th 
Ave SE to 196th Avenue SE, 196th Avenue SE from 
SE 240th Street to SE Wax Road and SE Wax Road 
from 193rd Avenue SE to 196th Avenue SE. This 
project is fully funded and scheduled to be 
completed in the late summer of 2013.    
 
 
 
 

2. CIP 1029  Citywide Intersection Safety Project – 10 Locations  
This project is part of the WSDOT City Safety 
Program that is focused on intersection safety. The 
project will do safety improvements to 10 locations 
throughout the city. These improvements vary at 
each location but may include rechannelization, 
adding warning beacons and pavement markings; 
improving sight distance, and crosswalks; 
upgrading signs, sidewalks and ADA access points. 
The intersections are SE 272nd Street / 168th Place 
SE, SE 272nd Street / 172nd Place SE, 168th Place 
SE /169th Place SE, SE 270th Place / 174th Avenue 
SE, SE 256th Street / 180th Avenue SE, SE 267th Street / 192nd Avenue SE, SE 261st 
Street / 180th Avenue SE, SE 268th Street / 164th Avenue SE, SE Wax Road / 180th Ave 
SE and SE 256th / 170th Ave. SE. This project is fully funded and scheduled to be 
completed in 2014.   

 
 

116 of 146



City of Covington 
2015-2020 6 Year TIP 
Project Descriptions 

 
 
3. CIP 1057 156th Avenue SE between SE 272nd Street and SE 261st Place 

 
This project will design and construct the pavement 
rehabilitation of 156th Avenue SE in the vicinity of 
SE 272nd Street and the vicinity of SE 261st Place.  
There is no widening associated with this project.  
The project will consist of pulverizing the existing 
roadway and overlaying with new asphalt.  ADA 
ramps will be upgraded as warranted. 
 
 
 
 

117 of 146



Agenda Item 2  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 27, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER ORDINANCE ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 1.20 

CMC PERTAINING TO A NEW CITY LOGO AND TAGLINE. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Karla Slate, Communications and Marketing Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Ordinance Adopting New City Logo 
 
PREPARED BY:  Karla Slate, Communications and Marketing Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Since last year, the Covington Economic Development Council (CEDC) has been intently 
working on a rebranding effort to better define the City of Covington’s brand. CEDC utilized 
several different research tools including focus group-type workshops, one-on-one interviews, 
citizen surveys, and the city’s comprehensive plan and economic development element to inform 
their project work. Groups that participated in the workshops included CEDC, the Covington 
City Council, the Covington Chamber of Commerce, and the City of Covington’s management 
team. One-on-one interviews were conducted with a variety of stakeholders including citizens, 
city staff, business members, commissioners, and council members. 
 
Analyzing the data resulting from the research allowed CEDC to better understand the city’s 
brand and move toward developing a new tagline and graphic identity to identify and market the 
city. A consultant assisted with studying the data and made a recommendation for a new tagline 
that accurately captures the public’s feeling of the city: “Growing toward greatness.” With the 
tagline developed, the project moved into the design phase. CEDC chose the final logo after 
considering twelve possible logo options. To ensure a consistency in the use of the new logo and 
tagline, CEDC also developed a brand guidelines document. This document outlines allowed 
colors, fonts, sizes, types and uses of the new logo and tagline.  
 
CEDC presented the final city logo and tagline to the city council and the Covington Chamber of 
Commerce at a joint meeting of all three organizations on May 13, 2014. All three organizations 
fully supported CEDC’s rebranding efforts and agreed that the new logo and tag line developed 
by CEDC should become the primary “mark” of the city, replacing the current use of the city 
seal in marketing. The city seal would remain as the formal symbol of civic authority and be 
used for official purposes, including documents requiring an official seal, and for 
mayoral/council use. 
 
Accordingly, staff has prepared the attached proposed ordinance to adopt and define the use of 
the new city logo and tagline developed by CEDC. (Attachment 1) 
 
 
 
 

118 of 146



ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Recommend amendment(s) to the proposed ordinance. 
2. Do not adopt the new logo and tagline. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
During the development of the new tagline and logo, $1,800 was expended for consultant 
assistance. The city council also approved a use of funds from the General Fund of $5,000 to 
implement the city’s new graphic identity.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    X     Ordinance         Resolution            Motion            Other 
 

Council member _____________ moves, and council member _____________ 
seconds, to pass an ordinance adopting amendments to Chapter 1.20 CMC 
pertaining to a new city logo and tagline.  
 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney 

119 of 146



ORDINANCE NO. 08-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NO. 40-97 TO ADOPT NEW PROVISIONS TO 
CHAPTER 1.20 OF THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE 
FOR A NEW CITY LOGO AND TAGLINE; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the current logo of the City of Covington has served as the city’s logo and 
official seal since it was adopted in 1997; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the city council recognized the need for the city to have a new logo and 
tagline that represents and identifies the current and future state of the city; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the city has undertaken a thorough and lengthy process to develop a new 
city logo and tagline; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the city council, Covington Economic Development Commission, and 
Covington Chamber of Commerce reviewed the final proposed new city logo and tagline at a 
joint meeting on May 13, 2014, and support the adoption of each as the city’s new official logo 
and tagline, respectively, and for the city’s current logo to be used only as the city’s official seal; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1

 

. The following amendments to Chapter 1.20 of the Covington Municipal Code 
are hereby adopted: 

Chapter 1.20 
CITY SEAL, LOGO, AND TAGLINE 

Sections: 
1.20.010    Findings. 
1.20.020    Seal Adopted. 
1.20.023    Logo Adopted. 
1.20.026    
1.20.030    Purpose of 

Tagline Adopted. 
seal, logo, and tagline

1.20.040    Unauthorized use of the City 
. 

seal, logo, and tagline
1.20.050    Violation – Penalty. 

. 

1.20.010 Findings. 
The City Council finds that the seal, logo, and tagline of the City adopted in CMC 
1.20.020 is this chapter are a symbol of the authority of the City and a valuable 
assets of its population. The council desires to ensure that only appropriate uses 
are made of the City seal, logo, and tagline.  

ATTACHMENT 1

120 of 146



1.20.020 Seal Adopted. 
The City adopts the symbol depicted below as its official City logo seal: 

 
The City logo seal

 

 depicts a vintage steam locomotive, No. 97, in the foreground 
against a stylized rendering of Mt. Rainier. The words “City of Covington” are 
integrated into the design.  

1.20.023 Logo Adopted. 

 
The City adopts the graphic depicted below as its common City logo: 

 
 

 

The common City logo depicts three adjacent circles, each with three arrows 
inside pointing upward. The word “covington” is prominently placed below the 
circles and the tagline “growing toward greatness” is integrated into the design. 

1.20.026 Tagline Adopted. 

1.20.030 Purpose of seal, logo, and tagline. 

The City adopts the tagline “growing toward greatness” as its City tagline. 

The City seal, logo, and tagline shall be used for official purposes only and 
according to policies and branding guidelines developed by the city

1.20.040 Unauthorized use of the City seal, logo, and tagline. 

, or as 
authorized by the City Council.  

Except as authorized by the City Council, the City seal, logo, and tagline shall not 
be used on or in connection with any advertising or promotion for any product, 
business, organization, service or article, whether offered for sale, for profit, or 
offered without charge. No person shall use a symbol, graphic, or any other image 
that imitates the City seal and/or logo or that is deceptively similar in appearance 

121 of 146



to the City seal and/or logo. The City seal and/or

1.20.050 Violation – Penalty. 

 logo may be used for illustrative 
purposes by the news media if the reproduction is incidental to a publication or 
broadcast, and may be used in political cartoons.  

Any person who willfully violates this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor and 
subject to punishment as set forth in Chapter 1.25 CMC. The City’s right to 
prosecute under this section shall not affect its right to pursue civil or injunctive 
relief under Ffederal or Sstate laws.  

 
Section 2. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 

ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this ordinance be pre-empted by state 
or federal law or regulation, such decision or preemption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 
Section 3. Corrections. Upon the approval of the city attorney, the city clerk is authorized 

to make any necessary corrections to this ordinance including, but not limited to, the correction 
of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, ordinance numbering, section/subsection numbers, and 
any reference thereto.  

 
Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of 

the city and shall take full force and effect five (5) days after the date of publication. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, at a regular meeting thereof this 27th day of May, 2014.  
 

 
 
 
_______________________                      
Mayor Margaret Harto 

     
PUBLISHED:  May 30, 2014 
EFFECTIVE:   June 4, 2014 

 
 
 
ATTESTED:       
 
                                          
Sharon Scott      APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
City Clerk       

 
________________________ 
Sara Springer 
City Attorney 

 

122 of 146



Agenda Item 3  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 27, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK PHASE 2 – 60% DESIGN AND COST 

ESTIMATE 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. CCP Phases 2 and 3 – 60% Design   
2. CCP Phase 2 – 60% Design 
3. CCP Phase 2 – Cost Estimate 

 
PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner  
 
EXPLANATION: 
Covington Community Park Phase 1 was completed in June 2013 and provides multi-use sports 
field, 1.5 miles of trails, restrooms, parking lot and restored wetlands. Late 2013, MacLeod 
Reckord Landscape Architects were hired to complete the 60% design for the remaining phases 2 
and 3. At the 50% design level, alternatives were presented at open houses, to the parks and 
recreation commission and city council for feedback and direction.  
 
The phase 2 60% design provides a covered performance stage with grass area seating and 
related drop off area, one large and one small picnic shelter, completes the trail system paved and 
soft surface trails, outdoor exercise equipment, a tennis court, temporary restrooms, a parking lot, 
park entrance, street improvements and required infrastructure elements such as storm water 
treatment and enhanced and mitigated wetlands.  This design incorporates the council’s direction 
of phase 2 minimum plus the addition of one large picnic shelter and installing utility 
infrastructure for a future education center. The cost estimate reflects construction and related 
soft costs associated with this plan.  
 
Next steps include a new contract for construction documents mid-2015, with going out to bid 
for construction and hiring a contractor in early 2016 and project construction through summer. 
The best case scenario would result in construction completion in late 2016.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Adopt the phase 2- 60% design, but not proceed with construction and return grant 
monies. 

2. Provide additional direction regarding phase 2 design. 
3. Not adopt the phase 2 – 60% design and return grant monies. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Project costs are $4,428,643, and which is comprised of $3.5m for construction plus soft costs. 
This is an increase from the $2.8m construction cost estimate at 50% design level, mainly due to 
educational shelter utility installation ($430,000) and the additional picnic shelter ($130,000). 

123 of 146



 
The current funding sources provide $2,100,000 for a shortfall of $2,328,643. Staff is currently 
in the State of Washington Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO) grant process which 
could provide $500,000. Even if successful, there is still a shortfall.  
 
The next step for funding is to apply for 2015 legislative appropriation for the balance needed to 
complete construction. Initial vetting of our state legislators has indicated support for the future 
funding request. If this effort fails to provide the necessary funding, a parks bond/levy could be 
considered to provide the money to construct phase 2.  
 
The option to not proceed with construction would require returning legislative appropriation 
grant funding the city has already spent. That amount spent at the completion of 60% design is 
roughly $264,000.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution      X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to adopt the Covington Community Park Phase 2 - 60% design. 
 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; Finance Director, Parks and Recreation Director. 

124 of 146



ATTACHMENT 1

125 of 146



ATTACHMENT 2

126 of 146



127 of 146



128 of 146



129 of 146



130 of 146



ATTACHMENT 3

131 of 146



132 of 146



133 of 146



Agenda Item 4  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 27, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  POLICY DIRECTION FOR POTENTIAL SIGN CODE AMENDMENTS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
PREPARED BY:   Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 Sara Springer, City Attorney 

Salina Lyons, Principal Planner                                                                                                         
Ann Mueller, Senior Planner 
Brian Bykonen, Associate Planner/Code Enforcement Officer 

                                   
EXPLANATION: 
 
A. Background 
Last year, city council directed city staff to study potential sign code amendments for temporary 
civic/non-profit banner signs for events.  Due to other high priority work tasks last year staff was 
not able to address this topic until this year.  City staff and the planning commission began 
review of this work task this past January as one of the top priority items of our 2014 work 
program. Staff has spent the first part of this year examining our sign code, discussing with other 
city staff their needs as they related to temporary signs for city-sponsored events and programs, 
and reviewing current case law and best practices regarding sign regulations.   
 
Staff has evaluated the needs of various city departments and functions, such as parks and 
recreation and aquatics programs; multiple city-sponsored civic events such as Covington Days, 
the holiday tree lighting ceremony, and Hollydaze; the new city branding program managed by 
the city’s Communications and Marketing Manager; and the Purple Lights Night program 
managed by the city’s Human Services Analyst.  Each of these departments and programs have 
different needs for temporary advertising, marketing, and notification signage. 
 
Our research and internal discussions have raised a variety of important policy issues that require 
direction from city council before staff may begin to draft proposed amendments to the city’s 
sign code. Inherent in these policy issues are questions regarding the city’s general approach to 
signs, city aesthetics, safety, and the associated policy, legal, and administrative considerations 
for each. Accordingly, this discussion item will allow staff to share with the council the core 
policy issues we identified in our consideration of amending regulations for temporary event 
signs and to receive direction from the council regarding the desired policy direction for each 
issue.  The direction received from council will then guide staff in our preparation of proposed 
amendments to the city’s sign code to be deliberated by the planning commission and 
subsequently brought to the council for consideration and final adoption. 
 

134 of 146



Given the complexity and nuances involved in the policy considerations regarding sign code 
regulations for temporary signs, staff has created the table below to guide the discussion. The 
content in the table is meant to merely be an outline of the issues to discuss, with broad 
regulation options and highly generalized policy, legal, and administrative considerations 
associated with each issue. Staff from all departments are prepared to contribute to the 
discussion, answer council inquiries, and elaborate on any issue as needed. 
 
This is the first of two planned agenda item discussions on this matter, and the council may 
choose to place this matter on additional council agendas if needed. 
 

B. Temporary Sign Regulation Policy Issues for Consideration 
 

A. Development of Regulations. Should all temporary signs within the city be subject to 
the same regulations, or should the city adopt different regulations for temporary commercial 
signs versus temporary noncommercial signs? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 

1. No Differentiation. Adopt the 
same regulations for all temporary 
signs.  
 
2. Different Regulations. Adopt 
different regulations for temporary 
commercial signs and temporary 
noncommercial signs. 
 

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 

 Generally, commercial signs are signs with 
communication that involves only the commercial 
interests of the speaker and the audience. 

 
 Generally, noncommercial signs are signs that express 

an opinion on an issue or a candidate, or communicate 
only noncommercial interests of the speaker and 
audience. 

 
 The classification of commercial or noncommercial 

speech is based on the content of the speech itself, not 
just the status of the speaker; however, the speaker can 
be considered to determine whether a message is 
commercial or noncommercial.  

 
o Courts have found that even though a city 

event may earn revenue, because the event 
was held by the city, the presumption is that 
the primary purpose and intent of the event is 
to serve a civic purpose for the community, 
therefore a sign for that event could be 
considered noncommercial speech.  
 

o Conversely, if a for-profit business was 
holding a blood drive or donation drive, for 
example, even though the speaker is a 
commercial business, a sign for those events 
could be considered noncommercial speech. 

135 of 146



 
 Some general content-based regulations (e.g. a general 

distinction between commercial and noncommercial 
messages, which considers the speaker and/or content 
of the message) have been upheld by courts as a means 
to make a sign code workable; however, such content-
based regulations must be based on a compelling state 
interest and face a strict scrutiny constitutional 
analysis (the highest form). 
 
 Viewpoint-based regulations (e.g. a regulation that 

restricts messages on one side of a political issue 
differently from the other, etc.) have been universally 
struck down by the courts. 
 
 Regulations cannot favor commercial signs over 

noncommercial signs.  

B. Additional Community / Civic Event Classification. Should temporary sign 
regulations be further segmented to provide for different regulations for community/civic 
events? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 

1. No separate regulations for 
temporary community/civic event 
signs. 
 
2. Separate regulations for 
temporary community/civic event 
signs. 

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 
 Community or civic event signs would be considered a 

sub-set of noncommercial signs and would be 
restricted to only those events held by the city or other 
organization sponsoring a community event wherein 
the primary purpose is not proposing a commercial 
transaction (i.e. would have to qualify as 
noncommercial). 
 

o All other temporary noncommercial signs 
that would not qualify as a civic event (e.g. 
general signs for religious institutions, 
schools, fraternal organizations, personal 
opinion, etc.) would be subject to the general 
temporary sign regulations. 
 

o In practice, then, if civic events are carved 
out separately, then each temporary sign type 
(and all other time/place/manner regulations) 
could be different civic events (e.g. street 
pole banner signs could potentially be 
allowed for civic events, but not for all other 
noncommercial signs, etc.).  

136 of 146



 
 Regulating signs based on the location of the content 

of the sign is a content-based regulation that must 
meet a strict scrutiny analysis. 

C. Types of Temporary Signs. What general types of temporary signs should the city 
allow? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 

Select all types of temporary signs 
that should be allowed: 

 
1. Banners 
2. Street pole banners  
3. Portable signs (A-frames, 

sandwich boards, etc. – a sign not 
permanently affixed to a structure 
and is designed for and capable of 
being relocated) 

4. Staked signs 
5. Inflatables 
6. Feather flags 
7. Other 

 

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 

 This is an allowed restriction that does not attempt to 
regulate the content of the sign, but rather the time, 
place, or manner in which the sign is permitted to be 
displayed. 

 
 City departments frequently use and desire to continue 

to use all forms of temporary signs. 
 
 Additional time/place/manner restrictions may be 

placed on each specific sign type and are addressed in 
subsequent questions herein (e.g. size, materials, 
location, duration, etc.) 

D. Premises and Off-Premises Signs. Should the city allow temporary signs off-premises, 
or only allow on premises? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 

1. Allow Off-Premises for All 
Temporary Signs. 
 
2. Allow Off-Premises for Only 
Temporary Non-commercial Signs. 
 
3. Do Not Allow Any Off-
Premises Temporary Signs. 

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 

 City departments desire to continue to be able to place 
temporary event signs off premises. 
 

E. Quantity and Size of Temporary Signs. Should the city restrict the size and quantity of 
temporary signs? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 

1. Restrict Overall Square Feet, 

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 
 This is an allowed restriction that does not attempt to 

137 of 146



Single Sign Size, and Sign Quantity.  
 

2. Restrict Overall Square Feet 
and Single Sign Size Only. No 
maximum number of signs per 
property/street frontage, etc. 

 
3. Restrict Single Sign Size and 
Quantity Only. No overall maximum 
square footage limit of sign facing 
per property, etc. 

 
4. Restrict Overall Square Feet 
and Quantity Only. No restriction on 
maximum dimension for a single 
sign. 

 
5. Restrict Overall Square Feet 
Only. No restriction on single sign 
dimensions or number of signs 
allowed per property/street frontage, 
etc. 

regulate the content of the sign, but rather only the 
time, place, or manner in which the sign is permitted 
to be displayed. 

 
 Restrictions per property (rather than across the city as 

a whole) are preferred by staff to make compliance 
and enforcement easier.  
 
 City departments and other businesses and 

organizations alike would prefer generous size 
allowances for banners, specifically, to ensure that all 
content is legible from reasonable distances (i.e. if the 
maximum banner size is too small, banner text could 
be forced to be too small to read from the ROW). 

F. Sign Locations - ROW. Should temporary signs be allowed to be placed in the city’s 
right-of-way (ROW)? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 
1. Do Not Allow in ROW. Do 
not allow any temporary signs to be 
placed in the city’s ROW.  

 
2. Allow in ROW in Certain 
Zones and/or Overlay Areas. Identify 
certain zones and/or overlay areas of 
the city (e.g. downtown, commercial, 
or high-traffic areas) where 
temporary signs may be allowed in 
the ROW. 
 
3. Allow in All ROW. Allow 
temporary signs in all of the city’s 
ROW. 

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 
 This is an allowed restriction that does not attempt to 

regulate the content of the sign, but rather the time, 
place, or manner in which the sign is permitted to be 
displayed. 
 
 State and county regulations regulate signs on state 

and county roads, respectively (i.e. 272nd is regulated 
by WSDOT) 
 
 City-owned ROW is deemed a “public forum” 

different from other city-owned property 
 

 Even if allowed in the ROW, sign placement would be 
subject to vehicular and pedestrian safety 
considerations.  

 
 A majority of the city’s departments would prefer to 

place temporary signs within the city’s ROW (which 

138 of 146



would be in addition to signs permitted to be placed on 
other city-property not the ROW, such as parks, the 
Aquatics Center, and City Hall). As the city is 
generally part of the noncommercial speaker group, if 
temporary city signs are allowed within the ROW, 
then best practice would be to permit all other non-
commercial speakers to place signs within the ROW in 
the same manner.  

G. Sign Locations – Fences. Should temporary signs be allowed to be placed on fences on 
private property? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 

1. Do Not Allow on Fences. 
 

2. Allow on Fences only on 
Premises. 
 
3. Allow on Fences only in 
Certain Zones and/or Overlay Areas. 
 
4. Allow on all Fences. Allow 
temporary signs on all private fences, 
whether off-premises (i.e. subject 
matter does not relate to that 
property) or not. 

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 
 This is an allowed restriction that does not attempt to 

regulate the content of the sign, but rather the time, 
place, or manner in which the sign is permitted to be 
displayed. 

 
 Even if allowed on fences, sign placement would be 

subject to vehicular and pedestrian safety 
considerations.  

 
 A majority of the city’s departments would prefer to 

be able to place signs on fences—especially fences at 
city parks as a potential revenue generating tool 
(allowing commercial banners, as well as 
noncommercial banners with sponsorship placement).  

 
 As the city is part of the non-commercial speaker 

group, if temporary city signs are allowed on fences, 
then best practice would be to permit all other relevant 
speakers to place signs on fences in a similar manner. 

H. Sign Locations – Over-Street Banners. Should temporary banners be allowed to be 
hung across streets? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 

1. Do Not Allow Banners Over 
Streets. 
 

2. Allow Over Streets in Overlay 
Areas. 

 
3. Allow Over All Streets.  

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 

 This is an allowed restriction that does not attempt to 
regulate the content of the sign, but rather the time, 
place, or manner in which the sign is permitted to be 
displayed. 

 

139 of 146



I. Additional Street Pole Banner Sign Restrictions. Should the use of street pole banner 
signs be restricted differently from other temporary signs (i.e. restricted to only geographic 
identification markers, civic events, and/or noncommercial organizations)? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 

1. Restrict to Geographic 
Identification Only. 
 

2. Restrict to Geographic and Civic 
Events Only. 

 
3. No Restrictions. 

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 
 If differing regulations are adopted for geographic, 

civic event, and or noncommercial signs, such 
differentiation would be content-based regulations that 
must be justified and supported by a significant 
interest of the city (i.e. safety, aesthetics, etc.). 

 
 A majority of the city’s departments would prefer to 

be able to place street-pole banner signs throughout 
the city that are either geographical identifiers or for 
specific civic events.  

J. Duration of Display. Should temporary signs be allowed to be posted at any time for an 
overall maximum duration, or should they be allowed to be posted for a specified period of time 
before and after the specified event/use/intent of the sign? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 
1. Restrict Before and After. 
Limit the time a sign may be posted 
before the intent of the sign and 
require the sign to be removed a 
certain number of days after the 
purpose of the sign has expired. 
(Exception: Political signs may not 
be restricted before an election, but 
may be subject to a removal period 
after an election.) 
 
2. Restrict After Only. Do no 
restriction how far in advance a 
temporary sign may be posted, 
however, require the sign to be 
removed a certain  number of days 
after the purpose of the sign has 
expired. 
 
3. No Restrictions. No specific 
restrictions on the posting of 
temporary signs other than the 
overall limitation on number of days 

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 

 This is an allowed restriction that does not attempt to 
regulate the content of the sign, but rather the time, 
place, or manner in which the sign is permitted to be 
displayed. 
 
 Given the number of events and programs advertised 

by all of the city’s departments in totality, city 
departments would prefer code provisions that allowed 
for a generous period of time for the display of 
temporary signs.  

 

140 of 146



each calendar year that a temporary 
sign may be displayed.  

K. Portable Signs. Should the city allow portable signs year-round? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 

1. Do Not Allow Portable Signs. 
 

2. Allow All Portable Signs. 
 

3. Allow Only A-Frame Portable 
Signs. 

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 

 This is an allowed restriction that does not attempt to 
regulate the content of the sign, but rather the time, 
place, or manner in which the sign is permitted to be 
displayed. 
 

L.  Sign Permits. Should the city require permits for temporary signs? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 

1. Require Permits for All Signs. 
Require a temporary sign permit for 
any and all temporary signs within 
the city. 

 
2. Require Only for Certain 
Classifications. Require a temporary 
sign permit only for signs within 
certain classifications (i.e. signs that 
require the city to install, signs that 
require some sort of administration 
by city staff, etc.) 

 
3. Require Only for Certain 
Types. Require a temporary sign 
permit only for certain sign types. 
Select the types of temporary signs 
that should require a permit: 

 Banners 
 Street light pole banners 
 A-frame signs 
 Staked signs 
 Inflatables 
 Feather flags 
 Other? 

 
4. Do Not Require Permits For 
Any Temporary Signs. 

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 

 Requiring permits could potentially make enforcement 
more difficult.   
 
 The application and issuance of temporary sign permit 

applications places an additional administrative burden 
on staff. 

141 of 146



M. Sign Permit Fees: If a sign permit is required, what fees, if any, should be collected? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 
1. Fees for all permits. Collect a 
fee for all sign permits. 
 
2. Fees for only certain 
Classifications. Collect a fee only for 
certain classifications of sign permits 
for cost recovery (i.e. signs that 
require installation by the city, signs 
that require administration or other 
monitoring by staff, etc.). 
 
3. No Application Fees.  

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 
 Fees can’t be expected to cover the costs of 

enforcement. Enforcement can still occur without 
permits or fees, and citations can be issued for non-
compliance, as the standards will be codified in the 
CMC. 
 
 If a permit is required but no fee is collected, staff time 

will be spent processing an application without any 
possible cost recovery.  

N. Sponsorship on Civic Event Signs. Should the city allow a certain percentage of non-
commercial sign facing to be used for commercial sponsorship? 

Potential Regulatory Options 
 

1. Allow Sponsorship only on 
Community / Civic Event Signs. 
 

2. Do Not Allow Sponsorship.  

Legal, Policy, and Administrative Considerations 
 
 As a possible additional revenue stream (or, at a 

minimum, a cost recovery measure), city departments 
desire the ability to place the logos of financial 
sponsors of the event, etc. 
 
 Purple Light Nights signs need to be able to recognize 

sponsors/donors. 

 
ALTERNATIVES:  Discussed above. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Staff time administer and manage any fees and handle code enforcement of 
violations.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution         Motion     X   Other 
 

PROVIDE DIRECTION TO STAFF AND CONTINUE DISCUSSION AT THE NEXT 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Community Development Director, City Attorney, City Manager    

142 of 146



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date: May 27, 2014  
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

6:30 p.m., Tuesday, June 3, 2014 Tri City Meeting 
(Black Diamond Hosting @ Covington City Hall) 

 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, June 10, 2014 Special Meeting 
Joint Study Session with Parks & Recreation Commission  

 
 

7:00 p.m. Tuesday, June 10, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 
 

 
 

 (Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

143 of 146



Americans with Disabilities Act – Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request (360-886-5700) 
 

 

 
 

BLACK DIAMOND COUNCIL COVINGTON COUNCIL MAPLE VALLEY COUNCIL 
Mayor Dave Gordon Mayor Margaret Harto Mayor Bill Allison 

Mayor Pro Tem Carol Benson Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Wagner Deputy Mayor Sean Kelly 
Councilmember Tamie Deady Councilmember Joseph Cimaomo, Jr. Councilmember Layne Barnes 

Councilmember Janie Edelman Councilmember Mark Lanza Councilmember Noel Gerken 
Councilmember Erika Morgan Councilmember Marlla Mhoon Councilmember Linda Johnson 

Councilmember Ron Taylor Councilmember Jim Scott Councilmember Victoria Laise Jonas 
 Councilmember Wayne Snoey Councilmember Erin Weaver 

 
 

7th ANNUAL JOINT CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
CITIES OF BLACK DIAMOND, COVINGTON AND MAPLE VALLEY 

Hosted by City of Black Diamond 
 

Tuesday, June 3, 2014, 6:30 p.m. 
Covington City Hall Council Chambers 

16720 SE 271st Street 

RECEPTION - 6:30 PM 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER - 7:00 PM –MAYOR GORDON 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

OPENING REMARKS – MAYOR GORDON 

ITEMS FOR JOINT COUNCIL DISCUSSION: 
1. King County Council update from Councilmember Reagan Dunn 
2. SCA Update (Deanna Dawson) 
3. Comprehensive Planning (Community Development Directors) 
4. Emergency Management Planning (Emergency Managers) 
5. Previous Initiatives Update 

o Tri-City Trail (Parks Directors) 

COUNCIL CLOSING REMARKS 

ADJOURN 

Draft 

as of 05/20/14 

 

144 of 146



 Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION 

Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 
 

Tuesday, June 10, 2014 - 6:00 p.m. 
 

 **Please note meeting start time ** 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City 
Council, Commission (if applicable) and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may 
involve presentations, feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the 
staff on key policy matters. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION TO ORDER  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Capital Development (Thomas) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization.  Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff.  Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows. 
 
ADJOURN      
               
               
 
For disability accommodations call 253-480-2400 at least 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay service call (800) 833-6384 and 
ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400.  
 

*Note* A Regular Council meeting will immediately follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft 

as of 05/20/14 

 

145 of 146



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
 
Tuesday, June 10, 2014                                                                           City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                               16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• End of Session Report (Covington Lobbyist Briahna Taylor) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  May 13, 2014 Special Joint Meeting with CEDC & Chamber Board; May 13, 

2014 Regular Meeting; and May 27, 2014 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Agreement with Tahoma School District for Aquatics Property Lease (Bahl) 
C-4. Approve Design Contract with Puget Sound Energy (Vondran) 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS 
1. Consider Proposed Resolution to Adopt 2013-2017 Transportation Improvement Program 

(Vondran) 
2. Discuss Amendment to Sign Code Policy (Hart) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
3. LED Street Lights Briefing (Vondran) 
4. Consider Community Development Block Grant Program Contract for Jenkins Creek Park 

(Vondran) 
 

COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 

Draft 
as of 05/20/14 

 

146 of 146

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	05-27-2014 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, May 27, 2014                                                                            City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Item C-1 Green Sheet 05-27-2014 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Item C-1 Attachments
	Consent Item C-2 Green Sheet 05-27-14 AWC Voting Delegates Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Item C-3 Green Sheet 05.27.2014  blue sheet CDBG.HOME  Interlocal  Agreement
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	Consent Item C-3 Attachment 1 Attch 1. 2015 Reg CDBG ICA Revised MS CM 
	Consent Item C-3 Attachment 2 Attchmt 2 for 05.08.14 HS Comm Minutes
	HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION
	MINUTES
	May 8, 2014- 6:30 p.m.
	MEMBERS PRESENT
	Joyce Bowling, Jared McMeen, McGregor-Hollums, and Adam Wheeler
	MEMBERS ABSENT
	Commissioners Leslie Hamada, Brian Lord, and Lesley Schlesinger
	CM Brian Lord was excused
	CITY STAFF PRESENT

	Consent Item C-4 Green Sheet 05-27-14 CDBG Agreement Blue Sheet_SBS Edit
	Consent Agenda Item C-4

	Consent C-4 Attachment 1 05-27-14 CDBG Agreement Attachment 1
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 05-27-14 6 Yr TIP 2015-2020 Public Hearing_SBS Edit
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachments 1, 2, & 3 05-27-14 6 Yr TIP 2015-2020 Attachments
	Item 2 Blue Sheet 052714_LogoOrdinance_BlueSheet_SBS Edit_CLEAN (2)
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 2 Attachment 1 052714_Logo Ordinance_Attachment 1_SBS Edit (2)
	Chapter 1.20 CITY SEAL, LOGO, AND TAGLINE
	1.20.010 Findings.
	1.20.020 Seal Adopted.
	1.20.030 Purpose of seal, logo, and tagline.
	1.20.040 Unauthorized use of the City seal, logo, and tagline.
	1.20.050 Violation – Penalty.


	Item 3 Blue Sheet CCP Ph2 60% Design
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 3 Attachment 1 CCP Phases 2 and 3 - 60% Design
	Item 3 Attachment 2 CCP Phase 2 - 60% Design
	Item 3 Attachment 2 Page 2 - CCP Phase 2 and 3 - 60% aerial
	Item 3 Attachment 2 Page 3 CCP - Performance Stage
	Item 3 Attachment 2 Page 4 CCP - Large Shelter
	Item 3 Attachment 2 Page 5 CCP - Education Shelter
	Item 3 Attachment 3 CCP Ph 2 - Cost Estimate
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	06-10-2014 Special Joint Meeting with Parks & Rec
	Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington
	Tuesday, June 10, 2014 - 6:00 p.m.
	CALL CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION TO ORDER
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA


	06-10-2014 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, June 10, 2014                                                                           City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Agenda Item 4 Blue Sheet 5-27-14_Blue Sheet_Sign Code Policy Discussion_FINAL_v2.pdf
	Agenda Item 4




